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: DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE c
Naperville lies on the West Branch of the Du Fage River near the southern boundary
“of Du Page County, approximately 28 miles southwest of Chicago. The town-site is generally
level with only minor variations in contour. The surrounding area was originally mixeq
prairie and timber, was later extensively farmed, and 1s now subject to ever—increasing
subdivision for suburban expansion. It, too, precents few outstanding topographic features,
The Naperville Historic District rougnly corresponds to the old core of the city

and includes most of ,the town-site as originally platted and its early additions north

of the river and the old Galena Road (Chicago Ave.). The district boundaries were drawn
with an eye to circumscribing the maximum extent of an architecturally and visually
cohesive area bearing the inprint of Naperville's history as a self-sufficient municipality
&s unaffected as possible Y its most recent develooment as a Chicago suburb. The eastern
boundary follows the intérior property lines east of Colurbia from Fourth to Highland, the
area east of this line being characterized mainly by more recent construction. The southern
boundary follows Highland, Chicago, and the property lines south of Jefferson or Jefferson
itself. The area inzediately south of tke boundary is marked by recent redevelopment,
particularly west of Washington ard thus effectively severs an interesting section south
of the river from inclusion in the district. The western boundary follows Eagle, the -line
of Main, and Washington, excluding areas to the west with little remaining visual interest
The northern bourdary is determined by the railroad and the Kroehler Furnitire factory, as
the area farther north is largely new.

Land use within the district is varied. Commercial usages are centered on Washington,

lefferson and Main, their Gtraditional location, but are beginnirg to crop up throughout

vil

district west of Ellsworth. North-Central College and- the Evangelical Theological

eminary occupy much of the area east of Ellswbrth, especially the blocks between Brdinard. - .

nd Loomis. Industrial developwent  is limited to the proximity of the railroad: The area -
f residential use, once continuous around the town's comzerical and educational cop-
entrations, is now effectively broken into two sections, a large districteast from

enter and a smaller one west from Main. The only Federal property in the district seems
0 be the post office at Washington and Benton. Transportation depends on the private
utomobile locally and on the automcbile andsthe Burlington-Northern commuter gervice- .
or inter-city travel. Washington and Chicago are the busiest arteries.

Density in the district dces not radically depart from the norm of small midwestern
wns. Land parcels are larger west of Washinéton, but the motentially ‘greater density-
st of Washington is completely offset by’ the greater number of religious and educational
ructures located there, Two-story, single-family detached frame residences are the most !
nerous building type, though there are some masonry structures of the same description.
mrerical structures are densest on Jeffersoen, forming a clcsed wall between Washington .
d Kain.These are mostly of one and twe-story masonry conctruction, although there are
Te of frame, particularly on Washington and mainly converted residences. There are few
ildings of any great height, the tallest being North Central College's original )
ilding and the spire of SS. Feter and Faul Catholic church at Zllsworth and Benton. Most
sidences are of substantial broportiors; the largest. housds aré.along Chicago and ncar .

» intersection of Ellsworth end Jefferson. '

Architectural styles Popular from circa 1830 to 1920 are. represented in the digtrict,
>ush many are not present in any great significance. Based on numbers and strength of
ign, Italianate is the dominant style (v.Nos.1, 3-5, 7, 15 velow). The-earlisst houses
~ “reek Revival and at least one (v.No.8 below) is an outstanding ‘example for Northern

ois. Queen Anne is a factor (v.No.12 below), as is the Prairie School. Threce houses

s.2, 6, 16 below) can be attributed to larry Robinson, chief draftsman for Frapk Lloyd
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Wright during World War I, and an architect whose independent work is otherwise poor
documented. There are also several examples of the various Medieval Revival styles,
of- very high quality (v.Nos.18, 19 below).

. ©Of approx1matelf 615 structures in the Naperville Historic District, excluding
garages and other irncidental buildings, 71 have been evaluated as possessing special
architectural and/or historical significance and an additional 81 were photograrhed °

.-<the Illinois Historic Structures Survey. This relatively large number of additioual .
(81) indicates the consistently hlgh niveau of the secondary structures in the distr:
Host of the remainirng 392 older structures reflect this standard. Also, several are
Revival residences of considerable age, unfortunately sided or otherwise unsympathet:
treated, that could add significantly to the character of the district if restored w:
care. Intrusions (20) and other recent structures (49) togerther account for roughly
11% of those extant. However, intrusions in the district are steadily growing in num!
a5 new suburban developments place increasing pressure on the older core. The commer:
district has begun to spread into previously residential precincts along Washington,
Jefferson and Van Bursn, leaving demolition gaos and tawdry functional structures in
woke. The most noticeable intrusion in thils Tategory 1s a new office building at the
northwest correr of Van Buren and Webster of a totally unsympathetic scale and charac
The commercial exrarsion has also been attended by the placement of parking lots that
unsightly in themselves, also open up incongruent vistas at several key spots. Two re
residence halls built by North Central College on Chicago between Ellsowrth and Loormi
are completely out of keeping with that street's character and another college buildi
at Bralnard and Franklin badly detracts from the school's 1870 main bulldlng.
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The Naperville Historic District ewbraces an area where one can trace the history
of one small piece of an immense metropolitan region from its earliest settlement, through
the stages of small town gnd city, up to its recent suburban role on the ba51s of v1sual
reninders alone.
The older building stock, though subjected to losses in the last thirty ycars, is
stil] 9relat1Ve1y intact and well above average in quality. There are a number of out-
standing, individual sites' and structures (Nos.1-20 below) and a considerably larger group

of pu1ldlngp only slightly less signiff@cant. Background buildings, often of quality,

'enhance the impression of period and place stressed by these major sites, indeed i9 is

the number and dquality of uhese secondary structures which account 31gn1«;cantly fpr the

characteristic flavor Jf Narerv1lle as an old town suddenly become a suburb,.
Despite: encroachments that have threatenwd to degrade Naperv1lle into just anotber
k.in the chain of bedroom communities encircling Chicago, the town has managed to
retain the unmistakable aura of an indep=ndent place tbat grew to maturlty durlng the

19th,.century.

HISTORY

.

* .
-t I

- . r L . . ;
Permanent settlement of Nagerville and its surrounding area began relatively late,
even for Northern Illinois, but, when once underway, procceded with considerable alacrity.,

Th® first settlers in the vicinity were Stephen Scott and his son, Willard, who, in the
fall of 1830, established themselves on the Du Page River in what is.now northarn Will
County. Almost simultaneously, in December, Bailey Hobson and Lewis Stewart explored the
Du Page River country and selected a site three miles morth of Scott, winbdering with him
until completion of Hobson's cabin in March 1831. Meanwhile, Captain Joseph Naper had
visited the region in February 1831 and claimed a site at what is now the southeast
corner of Mill and Jefferson. He returned in June with his Family, his brother John and
his -family, and a pumber of others and estarlished the Naper Settlement, the central
feature of the early history of Du Page County.
A trading house, sawmill, grist mill and a school were erected almost immediately,
the latter opening November 15 with 22 pupils. The small communlty provéd thriving and,

by the end _of the following spring (1832),

nurbered 180 inhabitants. The Black Hawk War

yccassiored the temporary abandonment of the site in favor of the security of Fort
dearborn (Chicago) 17 lay 1832, but the construction of Fort Paine in June and the.
nassacre of the Indians at the Battle of Bad Axe 2 August re-established tranquility and
"~ Naper Scttlement resumed its growth. 1833 produced three indicators of permanence:

. - ercction of the first frame house, establishment of , pcot office (v.No.ll below), and
{forts to organize a religious society.
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opened in 1834 and one of the most important ecarly thoroughfares in Northern I1linoi.
passed through Naperville on the route now followed by Chicago Avenue.

The town was first surveyed and platted by Joseph Naper, 14 February 1842, when
nagme was also changed from Naper Settlewment .to Naperville. It was organized as a vil:
7 February 1857, Josepn Naper serving as first president, and incorporated as a city
17 March 1890. a :

In 18%9, Du Page County was stricken off from Cook County, Naperville selected
as the county seat, and a courthouse built for $5,000. The first challenge to the to:
as the seat of the county government came in 1857, .when .an election was held to decic
whether that honor should be transferred to Wheaton. The proposition was defeated, b
only temporarily: a second election in 1867 was carried in favor of Wheaton. Nagervi!
however, refused to deliver up the county records, which were then forcidbly removed :
1858 by a band of Wheaton citizens in.a dawn raid. Awaiting the outcome of litigatio:
between the two towns, the records were subsequently stored at the Cook County courti
wvhere they were destroyed in the Great Fire of 1871. The county seat, though, remaine
Yheaton, and on 30 March 1877. the site of the old courthouse was transferred by the
county to Naperville and is now in use as a city park (v.No.14).

Through the years, Naperville has enjoyed considerable success as a commercial e
4ndustrial center. The first tavern/hotel, the Pre-EZmption House, was built in 1834 ¢
remained in operation far into the 20th century, eventually falling victim to demolit
the Naperville Agricultural works was established in 1836 and was quite successful ir
manufacture of steel scouring plows, production reaching 2,500 units annually by 185¢
Stone quarries in the vicinity produced high quality limestone from the town's beginr
until at least. 1904. Tree and shrub nurseries flourished: the Du Page County nurserie
(1849), Du Page zZclectic Nurseries (1853) , and Naperville Nurseries (1866) represent
the three major establishments doing business throughout the northwest. By 1857, thex
were two breweries producing 185,000 gallons a year both for local consumption and as
Naperville's chief article of export. The brick and tile works of Martin & King, late
Martin & Van Oven, were another important early firm. At mid-century, Napervilla, wit
ca.2,000 population, about 20 cOmmercial establishments, and 18 manufactories ard otk
industrial firms, presented a very prosperous picture. The completion of the Chicago,
Burlingto % Quincy Railroad through Naperville in 1864 added yet another incentive fc
growth, providing easy access to Chicago and more distant markets, .

Naperville's moat important industrial establishment was organized for the manuf
of lounge frames as the Naperville Manufacturing Co. in 1887. By World War I, this wa
the city's largest employer, with about 500 workers. It was re-incorporated as the Kr
Manufacturing Co. in 1915 and has gone on to becore one of the nation's largest furni
manufacturers. During the 1920's and later, Kroehler was so dominant that Naperville
assumed many of the aspects of a company town. :

Education has been a second strong force in the city's history. The Naperville
Academy was incorporated in 1651 and opened the following year. It remained & private
academy until merged into the public school system in 1863. The major institution in
town is North Central College, organized as Plainfield College in Plainfield, Illinod
in 1861, later changing its site to Maperville and its name to North Western College.

-y
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The present vain building was built in 1870 on land donated by the city as an enticemant.
The cazpus has expanded corsiderably since then and now covers a substantial portion

of the city's east side, including 41 acres on the site of Fort Paine just south. of the
Historic Djstrict. The Union Biblical Institute, now Evangelical Theclogical Seminary,

was organized and incoporated-in 1873 and, though suprorting its own faculty ard buildings,

is closely affiliated with fforth Central College. Its main building was raised in 1912,
Naperville's development was generally sure and steady, with few great spurts of
activity for over 100 years. Barly settlers were mostly of Znglish extraction and there
was a strong Influx of Germans, many from Alsace, beginning in the mid 19th-century. At
the 1910 census, with a population of 3,449, it was still easily identifiable as a
digstirct municizality within the Chicago metropolitan area, certainly ro suburb and
hardly even a satellite city. This remained true until the mid-1950's, since when
Naperville has been increasingly inundated by the waves of suburban expansion. Fopulation
in 1960 was 12,933, rising to 23,885 in 1970 and over 20,000 in 1975 -~ figures that
iccurately reflect the city's demotion to Just another Chicago suburb. Most of that
»  ~»lopment, however, has occured in newly-annexed territory sc that ths older sections
i.luded in the Historic District still reflect Naperville's development as 'a small
ity largely independent of any larger entity. ’ , -

ITZS AND STRUCTURZS OF SPCIAL SIGNIFICANCE i S .
umbers refer ‘o corresponding map. Axrea of primary significance listed first for sites
ith multiple import, : g

. WILLARD' SCCTT, JR. EOUSE
109 North Washizzton
Built in 1867 ' . .

Willard Scott, Jr.'s father vas one of the original Scott family settlers on the
Du Page River (see History) and an early pioneer of Naperviile, moving there in
1838. Willard, Sr., operated the Naperville llotel and Scott's General Store (1846),
and later opened a bank and exchange office (1854). The Scott house was for years
the center of Naperville's social life. . : ’

ARCHITSCTURAL AND HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE

ROLLO M. GIVLER EOUSE AND GARAGS —- “ELMEOLM™ =G %

144 South Sleight
Built before 1917 by Harry Robinson, architect
R.M.Givler owned and operated the Clarion, an early and important Naperville

newspaper, : -
ARCYITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE - y
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RESIDENCE

205 North Wright
The house was purchased by the Evangelical Theological Seminary in 1908. It

was moved to its present site in 1912 and has been successively used by the
seminary as a dormitory and married students' apartments.

ARCHITZCTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

RESIDENCE
122 South Brainard

Built in 1874 . .
The house was occupied for many years by the Hammerschmldt family, prominent

in the local quarrying business,

ARCHITZCTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

NORTH CENTRAL COLL=GE

North Brainard at Fast Franklin :

Ruilt in 1870 by John Van Osdel, arch_tect, south w1ng added in 1820
The building was dedicated as North Western College on 4 October 1870. The
town of Naperville donated a site of 8 acres as well as $25,000 for the
construction, horing that such an institution would become a factor in the

growth.of the town. They were not mistaken.
ARCHITECTURAL ARD EISTO::ICAL SIGNIFICANCE

NICHOLS REOUSE

40l Highland
Built in 1917 by archltect Earry Robinson
The Nichols family have, tradltlonally, been one of Naperville s most

* prominent.

_ ARCHITECTUnAL SIGNIFICANCE

RESIDENCE
227 East Jefferson

Built in 1866 by G.N.Gross
Iittle is known of Mr.Gross. This was later the home of Mae T. Watts, a noted

ecologist and author..

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

DEITER HOUSE
12 North Main

Built in 1846 by Dr.David Hoss
The hrouse orlblnallg stood on Washington Arecnue, having been moved to its

present site in 139
ARCHITZITURAL SIGNIFICANCE

P
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). RESIDZNCE (WILSON HOUSE)
32 East Jefferson

Built ca.1879 (?)
Documentary evidence points to ca.1879 as the date of construction, but the

structure seems stylistically considerably earlier.

ARCHITZCTUXAL SIGNIFICANCE

)e KROEHLER MANUFACTURING COMPANY

Loomis at C.B.& Q.RR
Bullt in 1905; alterations and additions in 1909, 1913.

Organized as the Naperville Lounge Company in 1893, the firm vas relncorporaﬁed
as the Kroehler Manufacturing Co. in 1915. A pajor employer in Naperville through-
out the company's history, the firm became one of the nation's largest manufacturers

of upholstered furniture. See also No.20.

HISTORICAL AND ARCHITZCTURAL SIGNIFICANCE -

PAW PAW STATION A T . PRy
143 West Jefferson I Y

Built in 1833, con51de*ab1y modified since
Paw, Paw Station.was the Naper Settlemﬂnt 5 flrst post office and tth the flrst

publlc building in the county,
HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE ’

J.L.NICHOLS HOUSE - . I T T
220 Chicago T I

Built ca.1890
J.L.Nichols was one of Naperville s most prominent citizens. Ee was active in

civic and educational affairs, donating funds for the public library (v.No.18)
and for North Ceniral College’s gymnasium. Nichols also compiled a popular
"Business Guide" and was one of the founders of the Naperville Lounge Co.

HISTORICAL AND ARCHITZCTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

, GENZRAL STORE .
ca.218 South Main . '
Built in 1847-9 by Joseph Naper
"~ Joseph Naper was the town's founder and this store represents only one of his

many enterprises, but the only extant one within the distriect. It has been in

use as a store since it was Erected.

ISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE



 « Form No 10-3008 .

(Rev, 10-74) i A .

UNITED STATLS DLPARTMENT OF THE INTERTIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE ,
k. _ |Receveo, . E-
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES ’ T e S ek
DATE ENTERED ~ :

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

INVENTQRY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET .Significance |remnumser O gicE  °

PUBLIC S%UARE (CEZNTRAL PARK)

Benton & Center .
The prescnt park is the site of the original Du Page County courthouse. After

the county secat was removed to Wheaton in 1868, the courthouse and square were
deeded to Naperville. It has been a cily park ever since.

BISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE

RESIDENCE
221 West Jefferson

Built ca.1870 ~
The house also has notable interiors.

ARCHITECIURAL SIGNIFICANCE

DR. TRUITT HOUSE
L8 East Jefferson : _ :
Built ca.1917, Harry Robinson, architect oo-
Dr.Truitt was one of the city's most promiment physicians, practicing for over
50 years and having been instrumental in_establishing the city's hospital.

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

"RESIDENCE (KREGER FAMILY KEOUSE)

37 West Van Buren

Built ca.1860 .
The Kreger family were not the original cccupants of the house, but did live

here for many years. They were quite prominent in the citye.

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

NICHOLS LIBRARY
ca.l00 South Washington

‘Built in 1898, M. E. Bell, architect

ARCHITEZCTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

FIRST CCNGRZGATIONAL CEURCH
Northwest Corner Benton and Center

Built in 1905
ARCFITSCTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

P.E.KRCZHLER BCUSE
126 North Wright

Built before 1917 ) ;
P.E.Krcehler began his association with the Naperville Lounge Factory Co. in
1893, became the company's secretary in 1394, the major stockholder in 1899,
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N on Ellsowrth to Sth, E on Sth to Loomis, S on loomis to 4th, E on bth to the interior
property lines E of Loomis, S.on these to the interior property lines N of North, E on
these to the E line of 515 East MNorth, S on this to North, E on North to the interior
property lines E of Colurmbiapr S on these to Highland, W on Highland to Brainard, N on
Braipard to Chicago, W on Chicago to Washington, N on Washington to the interior

property lines S of Jefferson, W on these to Main, N on Main to Jeffercon, ¥ on Jefferson
to Webster, S on Webster to the interior property lines S of Jefferson, W on these to
Zagle, and then N on Eagle to the point of commencement.

N.B.: Unless ctherwise specified, all boundary segments on streets follow the mid-line
of those streets. ' '

*
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